
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS ENFORCEMENT REPORT 
BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL 

March 10, 2016 
 
 
 

BUREAU OF LAND AND WASTE MANAGEMENT 
 

Underground Storage Tank Enforcement 
 

 
 
1) Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 15-0378-UST 

Order Date: November 23, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Phil and Cindy Pham 
Facility: Smith’s Service Center 
Location: 6507 Main Street  
 Elloree, SC  
Mailing Address: 106 East Boyce Street  

Manning, SC 29102  
County: Orangeburg 
*Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 19020 
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Supp. 2014) 
and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-
92.280.20(c)(1)(ii) (2012). 

 
Summary:  Phil and Cindy Pham (Individual/Entity) own and operate an 

underground storage tank (UST) in Orangeburg County, South Carolina.  
Following a file review, a Notice of Alleged Violation was issued on August 5, 
2015, for failure to pay annual tank registration fees for fiscal year 2016.  Phil and 
Cindy Pham did not respond and were issued a Consent Order (15-0378-UST) on 
September 24, 2015, but no response was received.  The Individuals/Entities have 
violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as 
follows:  failure to pay annual tank registration fees for fiscal year 2016. 

 
Action: The Individuals/Entities are required to: pay annual tank 

registration fees and associated late fees, in the amount of six hundred five dollars 
($605.00) and pay a civil penalty of three hundred dollars ($300.00).   

 
 

2) Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 15-0258-UST 
Order Date: December 30, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Mark Spivey 
Facility: Freedom Stop 1 



 
 

Location: 1175 Highway 11 
Chesnee, SC 29323 

Mailing Address: 322 Gardenview Drive 
Inman, SC 29349 

County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: 11-0114-UST ($850.00);  

AO 13-0159-UST ($7,625.00); AO 
14-0211-UST ($1,200.00) 

Permit/ID Number: 08656 
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (2002 and 
Supp. 2014) 44-2-60(A). 

 
Summary:  Mark Spivey (Individual/Entity) owns underground storage 

tanks (USTs) in Spartanburg County, South Carolina.  Following a file review, a 
Notice of Alleged Violation was issued on August 5, 2015. The Individual/Entity 
has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations 
as follows:  failure to pay to the Department annual tank registration fees for 
fiscal year 2015. 

 
Action:  Mark Spivey is required to: pay outstanding annual tank 

registration fees and associated late fees for fiscal year 2016 in the amount of two 
thousand, four hundred twenty dollars ($2,420.00); and, pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of six hundred dollars ($600.00).   

 
 
3) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-0383-UST 

Order Date:    December 17, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Virk & Sons, LLC 
Facility: Gill and Sons, LLC 

            Location:    2048 Highway 557  
Clover, SC 29710 

        Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    York 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   09444 
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), S.C. code 
Ann. § 44-2-10 et seq. (2002 and Supp. 2014); and South Carolina 
Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation, 7 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 
61-92.280.65 (2012).  

 
Summary:  Virk & Sons, LLC (Individual/Entity) owned underground 

storage tanks (USTs) located in Clover, South Carolina. On December 9, 2014, 
the Department issued a directive for a Tier II Assessment Report for a release at 
the Facility. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Underground 



 
 

Storage Tank Control Regulation as follows:  failed to determine the full extent of 
a release in accordance with a scheduled established by the Department. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: submit a Tier II Assessment 
Report and pay a suspended penalty in the amount of thirty-one thousand, one 
hundred eighty-five dollars ($31,185.00) should any requirement of the Order not 
be met. 
 
 
4) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-0413-UST 

Order Date:    January 4, 2016 
Individual/Entity: Sokpun Flores 
Facility: Ganesh Food Mart 

            Location:    32 Savannah Highway 
       Burton, South Carolina  
           Mailing Address:   1001 Cypress Street 
       Beaufort, SC 29906 

County:    Beaufort 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   00994 
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), S.C. code 
Ann. § 44-2-10 et seq. (2002 and Supp. 2014); and South Carolina 
Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation, 7 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 
61-92.280.93(a) and 61-92.280.110(c) (Supp 2012).  

 
Summary:  Sokpun Flores (Individual/Entity) owns and operates 

underground storage tanks (USTs) located in Beaufort, South Carolina. On June 
16, 2015, the Department conducted a file review and issued a Notice of Alleged 
Violation because there was no current financial responsibility documentation on 
file with the Department. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina 
Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation as follows:  failed to demonstrate 
financial responsibility for an UST system and failed to provide financial 
responsibility documentation to the Department upon request. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  submit a completed 
Certificate of Financial Responsibility and proof of mechanism; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of six hundred dollars ($600.00). 
 
 
5) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-0505-UST 

Order Date:    January 25, 2016 
Individual/Entity: Plez U Stores, Inc. 
Facility: Plez U Store 2 

            Location:    601 South Oak Street 
       Seneca, SC  



 
 

           Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 2187 
       Anderson, SC 29622-2187 

County:    Oconee 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   06720 
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), S.C. code 
Ann. § 44-2-10 et seq. (2002 and Supp. 2014); and South Carolina 
Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation, 7 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 
61-92.280.20(c)(1)(ii) (Supp 2012).  

 
Summary:  Plez U Stores, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and operates 

underground storage tanks (USTs) located in Seneca, South Carolina. On 
November 17, 2015, the Department conducted a routine inspection and issued a 
Notice of Alleged Violation because there was a stick in the drop tube shut off 
valve on the Plus and Premium USTs. The Individual/Entity has violated the 
South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation as follows:  failed 
to maintain adequate overfill prevention. On November 25, 2015, the Department 
received confirmation that both sticks had been removed from the drop tube shut 
off valve on the Plus and Premium USTs. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 
 

 
6) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 15-0232-UST 

Order Date: January 15, 2016 
Individual/Entity: Premier Petroleum, Inc. 
Facility: KMO 115 
Location: 7700 Highway 76,  
 Pendleton, SC  
Mailing Address: 2145 Duluth Highway Ste. A, 

Duluth, GA 30097 
County: Anderson 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 11046 
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Supp. 2014) 
and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-
92.280.20(c)(1)(ii) (2012). 

 
Summary:  Premier Petroleum, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns underground 

storage tanks (USTs) in Anderson County, South Carolina.  An inspection was 
conducted on June 19, 2015. The Individual/Entity has violated the South 
Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows:  failed to 



 
 

conduct adequate release detection for underground storage tanks and failed to 
inspect the impressed current system every 60 days.   

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  pay a civil penalty in the 

amount of one thousand five hundred and fifty dollars ($1,550.00).   
 

 
7) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-0468-UST 

Order Date:    January 27, 2016 
Individual/Entity: Sam Sharpe/Lewis Shealy 
Facility: Shealys PDQ 

            Location:    1251 Main Street 
       West Columbia, SC  
           Mailing Address:   1534 Hazel Street 
       Cayce, SC 29033 

County:    Lexington 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   12515 
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), S.C. code 
Ann. § 44-2-10 et seq. (2002 and Supp. 2014); and South Carolina 
Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation, 7 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 
61-92.280.34(c), 280.40(a), 280.40(a)(2), 280.43(d) (Supp 2012).  

 
Summary:  Sam Sharpe and Lewis Shealy (Individuals/Entities) own and 

operate, respectively, underground storage tanks (USTs) located in West 
Columbia, South Carolina. On September 2, 2015, the Department conducted a 
routine inspection and issued a Notice of Alleged Violation.  The 
Individuals/Entities have violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank 
Control Regulation as follows:  failed to provide records to the Department upon 
request; failed to provide adequate release detection methods for an UST system; 
failed to properly maintain release detection equipment; and, failed to conduct 
proper release detection using an automatic tank gauge (ATG). On November 2, 
2015, the Department received documentation that the ATG had been repaired 
and tank tightness test results. 
 

Action:  The Individuals/Entities are required to: pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) in accordance with the terms of a 
promissory note. 
 
 
8) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 15-0195-UST 

Order Date: January14, 2016 
Individual/Entity: Julia E. Lucero 
Facility: J & L Country Market 



 
 

Location: 1625 Edgefield Road, North 
Augusta, SC 29860  

Mailing Address: 230 Ambassador Drive, North 
Augusta, SC 29841 

County: Aiken, South Carolina 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 00118 
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), S.C. Code 
Ann. §44-2-10 et seq. (2002 and Supp. 2014), and the South Carolina 
Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations, 7 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 
61-92 Section 280.93(a) and 280.110(c).       

 
 Summary:  Julia E. Lucero (Individual/Entity) owns underground storage 
tanks located in North Augusta, South Carolina. On May 18, 2015, a Notice of 
Alleged Violation was issued as a result of a file review. The Individual/Entity 
has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations 
as follows: failed to demonstrate financial responsibility upon expiration of the 
previous mechanism and failed to provide financial responsibility records to the 
Department upon request and upon expiration of the previous mechanism.       
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  submit a completed 
Certificate of Financial Responsibility and proof of financial responsibility 
mechanism; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of six hundred dollars 
($600.00).   

 
 

Hazardous Waste Enforcement 
 
 
9) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 15-28-HW 

Order Date: December 10, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Possehl Connector Services S.C., 

Inc. 
Facility: Possehl Connector Services S.C., 

Inc. 
Location: 445 Bryant Boulevard  

Rock Hill, SC 29732 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: York 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: SCR 982 085 813 
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Act S.C. Code Ann. §44-56-130(2) et seq. (2002); 
The South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, 6 and 7 



 
 

S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(b), 61-79.270.1(c), 61-
79.265.16(d)(2-4), 61-79.265.52(d), and, 61-79.262.41(a) (2012). 

 
 Summary:  Possehl Connector Services S.C., Inc. (Individual/Entity) 
operates a facility in Rock Hill, South Carolina.  On April 28, 2015, the 
Department conducted an inspection of the facility. The Individual/Entity violated 
the Hazardous Waste Management Regulations as follows: stored waste greater 
than 90 days in a storage facility; failed to obtain a permit for the storage of 
hazardous waste; failed to maintain a written job description for each position, 
including the requisite skill, education, or other qualifications, and duties of 
facility personnel assigned to each position; failed to maintain a written 
description of the type and amount of introductory and continuing training that 
will be given to each person filling a position; failed to maintain records that 
document training or job experience completed by facility personnel; failed to 
keep the contingency plan up to date with the names, address, and telephone 
numbers of all persons qualified to act as emergency coordinator; and, failed to 
prepare and, no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the quarter, submit a 
written report to the Department. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: ensure hazardous waste 
containers are managed according to the regulations; ensure that employee 
training records, contingency plan and quarterly reports are managed in 
accordance with the regulations; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of one 
thousand, nine hundred fifty dollars ($1,950.00). 

 
 
10) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 15-27-HW 

Order Date: December 4, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Circor Instrumentation 

Technologies, Inc. 
Facility: Circor Instrumentation 

Technologies, Inc.  
Location: 405 Centura Court  
 Spartanburg, SC 29303 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: SCR 000 074 344 
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Act, S.C. Code Ann. §44-56-10 et seq. (2002 & Supp. 
2014), the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Regulation, 6 
and 7 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79 (Supp. 2013), the South Carolina Solid 
Waste Policy and Management Act of 1991, S.C. Code Ann. §44-96-10 et 
seq. (2002 & Supp. 2014), and the South Carolina Used Oil Regulations 
61-107.279.    
 



 
 

 Summary:  Circor Instrumentation Technologies, Inc. (Individual/Entity) 
is a small quantity generator of hazardous waste, located in Spartanburg, South 
Carolina.  On April 27, 2015, the Department conducted an inspection. The 
Individual/Entity has violated the Hazardous Waste Management Regulations and 
the South Carolina Used Oil Regulations as follows:  failed to accurately classify 
its wastewater sludge as a listed hazardous waste; failed to keep containers 
holding hazardous waste closed during storage, except when it is necessary to add 
or remove waste; failed to file a revised or new Notification form whenever the 
information previously provided became outdated or inaccurate; failed to post the 
name and telephone number of the emergency coordinator and the fire 
department, unless the facility has a direct alarm, along with the location of the 
fire extinguishers and spill control material, and if present, fire alarms next to the 
telephone; and, failed to ensure that containers and aboveground tanks used to 
store used oil at generator facilities are labeled or marked clearly with the words 
“Used Oil.” 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  ensure compliance with the 
South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act and Regulations; ensure that 
waste determinations and notification requirements are handled properly; ensure 
that hazardous waste containers are managed properly; ensure that the emergency 
information is posted next to the telephone; ensure that used oil is managed 
properly; notify the Department in writing  and request Department approval if 
the wastewater pretreatment sludge is declared nonhazardous through a process 
change, delisting or further testing; submit a revised Notification form to the 
Department to include the wastewater pretreatment sludge as a F006 listed waste; 
and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of twenty five thousand dollars 
($25,000.00).   

 
 
11) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 15-25-HW 

Order Date: December 4, 2015 
Individual/Entity: South Carolina State University 
Facility: South Carolina State University 
Location: 300 College Street NE 

Orangeburg, SC 29115 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Orangeburg 
Previous Orders: 14-10-HW ($1,000.00) 
Permit/ID Number: SCR000003665 
Violations Cited:   The South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Act §44-56-130(2); and the South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste  Management Regulations 61-79.262.13(d) 

 
 Summary:  South Carolina State University (Individual/Entity) is 
classified as a Large Quantity Generator of hazardous waste located in 
Orangeburg, South Carolina. On June 22, 2015, and August 7, 2015, the 



 
 

Department conducted inspections. The Individual/Entity violated the Hazardous 
Waste Management Act & Regulation: generated and stored hazardous wastes in 
this State without complying with the procedures in the regulations and failed to 
file a revised or new Notification form whenever the information previously 
provided became outdated or inaccurate. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  submit an updated 
Notification form to the Department reflecting changes in generator status and 
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

 
 

Infectious Waste Enforcement 
 
 
12) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 15-05-IW 

Order Date: December 7, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Charleston Women’s Medical 

Center 
Facility: Charleston Women’s Medical Center 
Location: 1312 Ashley River Road,  
 Charleston, SC 29407-5365 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Charleston 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: SC10-0168G 
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Infectious Waste 
Management Act §44-93-30 (2002); and the South Carolina Infectious 
Waste Management Regulation, 8 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-105 (2012).  

 
 Summary:  Charleston Women’s Medical Center (Individual/Entity) is a 
large quantity generator of infectious waste, located in Charleston, South 
Carolina.  On September 3, 2015, the Department conducted an inspection. The 
Individual/Entity has violated the Infectious Waste Management Regulations as 
follows:  failed to notify in writing of the corresponding amount of infectious 
waste generated annually for the category of pathological waste on the February 
2013 Renewal Notice.  
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  report the categories and 
accurate corresponding amounts of infectious waste; submit a revised Registration 
Renewal form to include the categories and corresponding amounts of infectious 
waste generated for the last twelve (12) months; and, pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of one thousand, eight hundred dollars ($1,800.00). 

 
 
13) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 15-06-IW 

Order Date: December 8, 2015 



 
 

Individual/Entity: MedSharps East LLC DBA 
Ecomed Solutions and MedSharps 

Facility: MedSharps East LLC DBA Ecomed 
Solutions and MedSharps 

Location: 2712 Middleburg Dr. Ste107 
 Columbia, SC 29204 
Mailing Address: 17340 Bell North Drive  
 Schertz, Texas, 78154 
County: Richland 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: SC19-01T 
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Infectious Waste 
Management Act §44-93-30 (2002); and the South Carolina Infectious 
Waste Management Regulation, 8 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-105 (2012).  

 
 Summary:  MedSharps East LLC DBA Ecomed Solutions and MedSharps 
(Individual/Entity) is an Out-of- State transporter of infectious waste.  On August 
31, 2015, the Department conducted an inspection of the Planned Parenthood 
South Atlantic facility, located in Columbia, South Carolina. The 
Individual/Entity has violated the Infectious Waste Management Regulations as 
follows:  accepted shipments of infectious waste which were transported within 
South Carolina, without being accompanied by infectious waste manifests that 
were completed in accordance with instructions for the Department approved 
form, in that the manifests did not include the generator’s registration number, the 
transporter’s registration number, or the weight or volume for the waste being 
transported.  
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  transport infectious waste in 
accordance with the regulations; submit a copy of the manifest form that will 
accompany waste transported within South Carolina to the Department for review 
and approval; submit a written protocol of the process for providing generators 
with documentation that shows the method of treatment for the waste transported; 
submit an Infectious Waste Transporter Registration Form to update any outdated  
information on file with the Department; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of 
six thousand dollars ($6,000.00). 

 
 

Solid Waste Enforcement 
 
 

14)  Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-26-SW 
Order Date:    January 28, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   Ronald and Catherine Jenkins 
Facility: Unpermitted Class Two and Class 

Three Landfill and unpermitted 
Waste Tire Collection Facility 



 
 

Location: 717 Founders Road  
Lexington, SC 29073 

Mailing Address: 709 Founders Road  
Lexington, SC 29073  

County:    Lexington 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   Unpermitted 
Violations Cited:   The South Carolina Solid Waste 
Policy and Management Act of 1991 (Rev. 2002); South Carolina Solid 
Waste Management: Solid Waste Landfills and Structural Fill, R. 61-
107.19 (Supp. 2012); and, South Carolina Solid Waste Management:  
Waste Tires, R.61-107.3(2015).  

 
Summary:  Ronald and Catherine Jenkins (Individuals/Entities) are the 

owners and operators of an unpermitted Class Two and Class Three Landfill and 
an unpermitted waste tire collection facility.  As a result of a complaint regarding 
the unauthorized disposal of solid waste and tires, an inspection was conducted on 
May 19, 2015.  The Individuals/Entities have violated the South Carolina Solid 
Waste Policy and Management Act of 1991; the South Carolina Solid Waste 
Management: Solid Waste Landfills and Structural Fill Regulation and, the South 
Carolina Solid Waste Management: Waste Tires as follows:  operated Class Two 
and Class Three landfills and operated a waste tire collection facility without first 
obtaining permits from the Department.  
 

Action:  The Individuals/Entities are required to:  provide the Department 
with disposal receipts, documenting the removal and disposal of all solid waste 
and waste tires placed on the ground at the Site at a permitted solid waste 
management facility and/or a permitted tire recycling facility and pay a stipulated 
penalty in the amount of eight thousand, five hundred and ninety-nine dollars 
($8,599.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.  

 
 

 
BUREAU OF WATER 

 
Recreational Waters Enforcement 

 
 

15) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-142-RW 
Order Date:    December 4, 2015 
Individual/Entity: KNC Hospitality Management, 

LLC 
Facility:    Quality Inn & Suites 
Location:    1314 South Pleasantburg Drive 
     Greenville, SC 29607 
Mailing Address:   Same 



 
 

County:    Greenville 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   23-058-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J) 

 
Summary: KNC Hospitality Management, LLC (Individual/Entity) leases 

and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On May 
28, 2015, and July 15, 2015, the pool was inspected and a violation was issued for 
failure to properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the 
Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: a skimmer was missing a weir; 
chlorine sticks were in the skimmer baskets; the gate did not self-close and latch; 
there was no foot rinse shower; the pool equipment room was unlocked and the 
piping was leaking; the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of 
water quality standards; the main drain grates were not visible; there was no 
shepherd’s crook; the emergency notification device was not operational; the 
facility address was not posted at the emergency notification device; the pool 
rules sign was not completely filled out; the “No Lifeguard On Duty – Swim At 
Your Own Risk” signs did not have the correct wording and the appropriate size 
lettering; the facility could not produce current valid documentation of pool 
operator certification;  the log book was not properly bound and numbered, 
maintained daily, and maintained a minimum of three times a week by the pool 
operator of record; the disinfection equipment was not in operable condition; and, 
the life ring was deteriorated. 

 
Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit a corrective action 

plan and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of six hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).   

 
 

16) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-143-RW 
Order Date:    December 4, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Habersham Homeowners 

Association, Inc. 
Facility:    Habersham 
Location:    109 Wickersham Way 
     Easley, SC 29642 
Mailing Address: 1027 South Pendleton Street 

Suite B177 
 Easley, SC 29642 

County:    Pickens 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   39-077-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary: Habersham Homeowners Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) 

owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On 



 
 

June 15, 2015, and August 13, 2015, the pool was inspected and a violation was 
issued for failure to properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has 
violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: a ladder was missing 
bumpers; debris was in the skimmer baskets; a skimmer was missing a weir; the 
chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; and, 
the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis. 

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: submit a corrective action 

plan and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of six hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).   

 
 

17) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-144-RW 
Order Date:    December 10, 2015 
Individual/Entity: King Real Estate Holdings, LP 
Facility:    The Groves 
Location:    300 Arrowhead Drive 
     Central, SC 29630 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Pickens 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   39-1064B 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary: King Real Estate Holdings, LP (Individual/Entity) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On July 9, 2015, 
and August 20, 2015, the pool was inspected and a violation was issued for failure 
to properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public 
Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the handrails were not tight and secure; 
the gate did not self-close and latch; there were no paper towels in the bathroom; 
the pH level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the 
cyanuric acid level was above the water quality standards acceptable limit; the 
bound and numbered log book was missing readings for cyanuric acid; and, 
chlorine sticks were in the skimmer baskets. 

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: submit a corrective action 

plan and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of six hundred eighty dollars ($680.00). The civil penalty 
has been paid. The Individual/Entity submitted a corrective action plan and 
corrected the deficiencies.  

 
 

18) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-145-RW 
Order Date:    December 15, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Creekwood Homeowners’ 

Association, Inc. 



 
 

Facility:    Creekwood 
Location:    2 Creek Shoals Drive 
     Greenville, SC 29607 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Greenville 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   23-1117C 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J) 

 
Summary:  Creekwood Homeowners’ Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) 

owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a kiddie 
pool. On June 15, 2015, and August 17, 2015, the kiddie pool was inspected and a 
violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain. The 
Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: 
a handrail was not tight and secure; the chlorine and pH levels were not within the 
acceptable range of water quality standards; the emergency notification device 
was not operational; the facility address was not posted at the emergency 
notification device; the current pool operator of record information was not 
posted; the facility could not produce current valid documentation of pool 
operator certification; and, the bound and numbered log book was not maintained 
on a daily basis. 

 
Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit a corrective action 

plan and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of six hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).  The 
Individual/Entity submitted a corrective action plan and corrected the 
deficiencies. 

 
 

Drinking Water Enforcement 
 
 

19) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-048-DW 
Order Date:    December 9, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Wilson Trucking Corporation 
Facility: Wilson Trucking Charleston 

Terminal 
            Location:    708 Jedburg Road 
       Summerville, SC 29483 
           Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 200 
       Fisherville, VA 22939 

County:    Berkeley 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   0830027 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.7, 61-
58.1.B(1), & 61-58.1.K(1)  



 
 

 
Summary: Wilson Trucking Corporation (Individual/Entity) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system 
(PWS). On September 10, 2015, the PWS was inspected and rated unsatisfactory 
for failure to properly operate and maintain; and, for unpermitted construction and 
operation of a modification to the PWS. The Individual/Entity has violated the 
State Primary Drinking Water Regulations as follows: there was no screened vent 
on the wellhead piping; a nest of ants was inside the well house; a Puronics water 
softening treatment unit had been installed at the well that had not been permitted 
by the Department for installation and approved by the Department for operation; 
and, a water treatment operator of at least a “C” grade was not employed to 
monitor the treatment system.  
  

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: correct the deficiencies; pay 
a civil penalty in the amount of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00); and, pay a 
stipulated penalty in the amount of six thousand dollars ($6,000.00) should any 
requirement of the Order not be met. The civil penalty has been paid.  The 
Individual/Entity removed the treatment system and corrected the deficiencies. 
 
 
20) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-049-DW 

Order Date:    December 14, 2015 
Individual/Entity:   Riverwinds Landing, Inc. 
Facility:    Riverwinds Landing 

             Location:    221 Highway 391 
       Prosperity, SC 29127 
            Mailing Address:   Same 

County:    Newberry 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   3670913 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.5.F 

 
Summary: Riverwinds Landing, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system 
(PWS). On March 11, 2015, and October 23, 2015, a violation was issued as a 
result of review of monitoring records. The Individual/Entity has violated the 
State Primary Drinking Water Regulations as follows: the PWS exceeded the 
maximum contaminant level (MCL) for total coliform.   
 

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit an investigative report 
to determine the causes of the MCL violations and a corrective action plan to 
include proposed steps to address those causes; and, pay a stipulated penalty in 
the amount of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) should any requirement of the 
Order not be met. 
 
 



 
 

21) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-050-DW 
Order Date:    December 15, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Charlene Strickland, Individually 

and d.b.a. Norton Country Store 
Facility:    Norton Country Store 
Location:    4065 Fair Bluff Highway 
     Green Sea, SC 29545 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Horry 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   2672007 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
30(G)(2)(a)   

 
Summary: Charlene Strickland, Individually and d.b.a. Norton Country 

Store (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and 
maintenance of a public water system. On October 23, 2015, the Department sent 
final notice to the Individual/Entity requiring payment of the annual Safe 
Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016.  The Individual/Entity has violated 
the Environmental Protection Fees Regulation as follows: failed to pay to the 
Department the annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal Year 2016. 

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: pay to the Department the 

owed annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016 and associated late 
fees in the amount of three hundred seventy-eight dollars and thirteen cents 
($378.13). The annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016 has been 
paid. 

 
 
22) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-051-DW 

Order Date:    December 15, 2015 
Individual/Entity:   TPHM, Inc. 
Facility:    Club MGM 

            Location:    5135 Highway 38 North 
       Bennettsville, SC 29512 
           Mailing Address:   Same 

County:    Marlboro 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   3472007 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.5.F 

 
Summary: TPHM, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the 

proper operation and maintenance of a public water system (PWS). On September 
11, 2015, October 28, 2015, and November 13, 2015, a violation was issued as a 
result of review of monitoring records. The Individual/Entity has violated the 
State Primary Drinking Water Regulations as follows: the PWS exceeded the 



 
 

maximum contaminant level (MCL) for total coliform.   
 

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit an investigative report 
to determine the causes of the MCL violations and a corrective action plan to 
include proposed steps to address those causes; and, pay a stipulated penalty in 
the amount of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) should any requirement of the 
Order not be met. 
 

 
23) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-001-DW 

Order Date:    January 4, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   Town of Springfield 
Facility:    Town of Springfield 
Location:    1505 Georgia Street 

       Springfield, SC 29146 
Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 31 

       Springfield, SC 29146 
County:    Orangeburg 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   3810009 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
30(G)(2)(a)   

 
Summary: The Town of Springfield (Individual/Entity) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system. 
On October 30, 2015, the Department sent final notice to the Individual/Entity 
requiring payment of the annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016.  
The Individual/Entity has violated the Environmental Protection Fees Regulation 
as follows: failed to pay to the Department the annual Safe Drinking Water Act 
fee for fiscal Year 2016. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: pay to the Department the 
owed annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016 and associated late 
fees in the amount of two thousand, nine hundred sixty dollars and forty-four 
cents ($2,960.44).  
 
 
24) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-002-DW 

Order Date:    January 4, 2016  
Individual/Entity:   Town of Wagener 
Facility:    Town of Wagener 
Location:    113 Railroad Avenue West 

       Wagener, SC 29164 
Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 400 

       Wagener, SC 29164 
County:    Aiken 



 
 

Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   0210004 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
30(G)(2)(a)   

 
Summary: The Town of Wagener (Individual/Entity) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system. 
On October 30, 2015, the Department sent final notice to the Individual/Entity 
requiring payment of the annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016.  
The Individual/Entity has violated the Environmental Protection Fees Regulation 
as follows:  failed to pay to the Department the annual Safe Drinking Water Act 
fee for fiscal Year 2016. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: pay to the Department the 
owed annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016 and associated late 
fees in the amount of three thousand, four hundred four dollars and fifty cents 
($3,404.50).  
 

 
25) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-003-DW 

Order Date:    January 4, 2016 
Individual/Entity: South Carolina Department of 

Corrections 
Facility: MacDougall Correctional Institution 

           Location:    1516 Old Gilliard Road 
Ridgeville, SC 29472           

Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 21787 
      Columbia, SC 29210 

County:    Berkeley 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   0870050 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.7, 61-
58.1.B, & 61-58.1.K(1)  
 
Summary:  South Carolina Department of Corrections (Individual/Entity) 

owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public 
water system (PWS). On September 9, 2015, the PWS was inspected and rated 
unsatisfactory for failure to properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity 
has violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations as follows: failed to 
inspect and service the elevated storage tank; failed to obtain a permit from the 
Department prior to replacing the pump at Well 2; and, failed to obtain written 
approval to operate from the Department prior to placing the replacement pump 
into operation.   

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: obtain a permit and approval 

to operate for the replacement pump; have the interior and exterior of the elevated 



 
 

storage tank inspected by a professional tank servicing company, and submit a 
copy of the report to the Department; complete the repairs recommended in the 
elevated storage tank inspection report; and, pay a stipulated penalty in the 
amount of twelve thousand dollars ($12,000.00) should any requirement of the 
Order not be met 

 
 
26) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-004-DW 

Order Date:    January 4, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   Trinity Episcopal Church 
Facility:    Trinity Episcopal Church 

            Location:    1589 Highway 174 
      Edisto Island, SC 29438 
            Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 425 
      Edisto Island, SC 29438 

County:    Charleston 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   1079013 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.5.F 
 
Summary: Trinity Episcopal Church (Individual/Entity) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system 
(PWS). On February 20, 2015, April 24, 2015, and October 2, 2015, a violation 
was issued as a result of review of monitoring records. The Individual/Entity has 
violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations as follows: the PWS 
exceeded the maximum contaminant level (MCL) for total coliform.   

 
Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit an investigative report 

to determine the causes of the MCL violations and a corrective action plan to 
include proposed steps to address those causes; and, pay a stipulated penalty in 
the amount of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) should any requirement of the 
Order not be met. 

 
 

27) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-005-DW 
Order Date:    January 4, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   RLH Leisure, LLC 
Facility:    Magnolia RV Park & Campground 

            Location:    567 Fairview Church Road 
      Kinards, SC 29355 
            Mailing Address:   Same 

County:    Laurens 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   3070801 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.5.F 
 



 
 

Summary: RLH Leisure, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible 
for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system (PWS). On 
May 8, 2015, and December 7, 2015, a violation was issued as a result of review 
of monitoring records. The Individual/Entity has violated the State Primary 
Drinking Water Regulations as follows: the PWS exceeded the maximum 
contaminant level (MCL) for total coliform.   

 
Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit an investigative report 

to determine the causes of the MCL violations and a corrective action plan to 
include proposed steps to address those causes; and, pay a stipulated penalty in 
the amount of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) should any requirement of the 
Order not be met. 

 
 

28) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-006-DW 
Order Date:    January 11, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   Phyllis Grant, Individually and  
     d.b.a. Sheldon Convenience Store 
Facility:    Sheldon Convenience Store 
Location:    724 Trask Parkway 

      Seabrook, SC 29940 
Mailing Address:   32 Horse Tail Road 

       Yemassee, SC 29945 
County:    Beaufort 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   0770927 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
30(G)(2)(a)   
 
Summary: Phyllis Grant, Individually and d.b.a. Sheldon Convenience 

Store (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and 
maintenance of a public water system. On November 20, 2015, the Department 
sent final notice to the Individual/Entity requiring payment of the annual Safe 
Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016.  The Individual/Entity has violated 
the Environmental Protection Fees Regulation as follows: failed to pay to the 
Department the annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal Year 2016. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: pay to the Department the 
owed annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016 and associated late 
fees in the amount of three hundred seventy-eight dollars and thirteen cents 
($378.13).  
 
 
29) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-007-DW 

Order Date:    January 13, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   Carolyn Salters, Individually and  



 
 

     d.b.a. Blackstock Fish Camp  
Facility:    Blackstock Fish Camp  
Location:    1944 Blackstock Road 

      Blackstock, SC 29014 
Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 176 

       Blackstock, SC 29014 
County:    Fairfield 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   2070909 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
30(G)(2)(a)   

 
Summary: Carolyn Salters, Individually and d.b.a. Blackstock Fish Camp 

(Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and 
maintenance of a public water system. On October 20, 2015, the Department sent 
final notice to the Individual/Entity requiring payment of the annual Safe 
Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016.  The Individual/Entity has violated 
the Environmental Protection Fees Regulation as follows: failed to pay to the 
Department the annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal Year 2016. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: pay to the Department the 
owed annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016 and associated late 
fees in the amount of three hundred seventy-eight dollars and thirteen cents 
($378.13).  
 
 
30) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-008-DW 

Order Date:    January 13, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   Alvin Recreational League 
Facility:    Alvin Recreational Center 
Location:    2191 Santee River Road 

      St. Stephens, SC 29479 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Berkeley 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   0870949 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
30(G)(2)(a)   

 
Summary: Alvin Recreational League (Individual/Entity) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system. 
On October 20, 2015, the Department sent final notice to the Individual/Entity 
requiring payment of the annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016.  
The Individual/Entity has violated the Environmental Protection Fees Regulation 
as follows: failed to pay to the Department the annual Safe Drinking Water Act 
fee for fiscal Year 2016. 



 
 

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: pay to the Department the 

owed annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016 and associated late 
fees in the amount of two hundred forty dollars and sixty-three cents ($240.63).  
 
 
31) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-009-DW 

Order Date:    January 11, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   Journey Investments, LLC 
Facility:    Three Oaks Mobile Home Park 
Location:    6386 Savannah Highway, Lot 11 

      Ravenel, SC 29470 
Mailing Address:   6386 Savannah Highway 

       Ravenel, SC 29470 
County:    Charleston 
Previous Orders:   15-022-DW 
Permit/ID Number:   1060005 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
30(G)(2)(a)   

 
Summary: Journey Investments, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system. 
On October 20, 2015, the Department sent final notice to the Individual/Entity 
requiring payment of the annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016.  
The Individual/Entity has violated the Environmental Protection Fees Regulation 
as follows: failed to pay to the Department the annual Safe Drinking Water Act 
fee for fiscal Year 2016. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: pay to the Department the 
owed annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016 and associated late 
fees in the amount of two hundred forty dollars and sixty-three cents ($240.63).  
 
 
32) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-010-DW 

Order Date:    January 14, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   Kenneth Pifer, Individually and  
     d.b.a. Showgirlz 
Facility:    Showgirlz 
Location:    220 Parklane Drive 

      Santee, SC 29142 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Orangeburg 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   3870907 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
30(G)(2)(a)   



 
 

 
Summary: Kenneth Pifer, Individually and d.b.a. Showgirlz 

(Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and 
maintenance of a public water system. On October 20, 2015, the Department sent 
final notice to the Individual/Entity requiring payment of the annual Safe 
Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016. The Individual/Entity has violated 
the Environmental Protection Fees Regulation as follows: failure to pay to the 
Department the annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal Year 2016. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: pay to the Department the 
owed annual Safe Drinking Water Act fee for fiscal year 2016 and associated late 
fees in the amount of three hundred seventy-eight dollars and thirteen cents 
($378.13).  
 
 
33) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-011-DW 

Order Date:    January 14, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   JR Lex2, LLC 
Facility:    Dollar General, Ridgeville 

           Location:    US Highway 78 
Ridgeville, SC 29472           

Mailing Address:   955 Old Cherokee Road 
      Lexington, SC 29072 

County:    Dorchester 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   30624-WS & 30794-WS 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.1.B(8) 
& 61-58.1.K(1)  
 
Summary:  JR Lex2, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for 

the construction and operation of a public water system (PWS). On November 10, 
2015, the PWS was inspected and it was determined that the appurtenances 
associated with a new public supply well had been constructed and operated 
without a permit to construct and written approval to operate. The 
Individual/Entity has violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations as 
follows: failed to obtain a permit from the Department prior to the construction of 
the appurtenances associated with a new public supply well; and, failed to obtain 
written approval to operate from the Department prior to placing the PWS into 
operation.  The Individual/Entity has obtained the permit to construct and written 
approval to operate.  

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the 

amount of three thousand dollars ($3,000.00). The civil penalty has been paid.  
 

 
34) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-012-DW 



 
 

Order Date:    January 14, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   Tracy Trigg Camping Resorts, Inc. 
Facility:    Charlotte-Fort Mill KOA 

            Location:    940 Gold Hill Road 
      Fort Mill, SC 29708 
            Mailing Address:   Same 

County:    York 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   1079013 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.5.F 
 
Summary:  Tracy Trigg Camping Resorts, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns 

and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water 
system (PWS). On October 2, 2015, and November 6, 2015, a violation was 
issued as a result of review of monitoring records. The Individual/Entity has 
violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations as follows: the PWS 
exceeded the maximum contaminant level (MCL) for total coliform.   

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: submit an investigative 

report to determine the causes of the MCL violations and a corrective action plan 
to include proposed steps to address those causes; and, pay a stipulated penalty 
in the amount of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) should any requirement of the 
Order not be met. 

 
 
35) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-013-DW 

Order Date:    January 14, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   Kiser & Associates, Inc. 
Facility:    Maryfield Development 

           Location:    Lot 12 Maryfield Road 
      Daufuskie Island, SC 29915 
          Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 2030 
      Bluffton, SC 29910 

County:    Beaufort 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   0750045 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.7  
 
Summary: Kiser & Associates, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system 
(PWS). On August 19, 2015, the PWS was inspected and rated unsatisfactory for 
failure to properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the 
State Primary Drinking Water Regulations as follows: there was a leak at the 
drain valve at the bottom of the storage tank; the exterior of the storage tank had 
significant rusting; the interior of the storage tank had not been inspected; the 
electrical wiring at the well was not enclosed in conduit; the control panel located 



 
 

inside the well house did not have a cover; there was vegetation around the well 
house; and, the storage tank deficiency from the previous survey had not been 
corrected.  

  
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: have the interior of the 

storage tank inspected by a professional tank servicing company; complete the 
recommendations in the storage tank inspection report; correct the deficiencies; 
pay a civil penalty in the amount of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00); and, pay a 
stipulated penalty in the amount of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) should any 
requirement of the Order not be met.  

 
 

Water Pollution Enforcement 
 
 

36) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 15-047-W 
Order Date: December 18, 2015  
Individual/Entity: Town of Bowman 
Facility: Town of Bowman WWTF 
Location: Secondary Road #36  NE of 
 Bowman, South Carolina 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 37 
 Bowman, SC 29018 
County: Orangeburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: SC0040037  
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann.§ 48-1-110(d) (Supp. 
2014) and 24 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-9.122.41(a) and 122.41 (o) (Supp. 
2014) 

 
Summary: The Town of Bowman (Individual/Entity) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of the Town of Bowman 
Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF). On November 5, 2014, May 18, 2015, 
and June 25, 2015, Notices of Violation (NOVs) were issued as a result of review 
of discharge monitoring reports submitted by the Individual/Entity.  The 
Individual/Entity has violated the Pollution Control Act and Water Pollution 
Control Permits as follows:  failed to comply with the permitted discharge limits 
for fecal coliform bacteria, total residual chlorine, ammonia-nitrogen, and total 
copper; failed to accurately report laboratory data on Discharge Monitoring 
Reports (DMRs) submitted to the Department; and, failed to conduct sampling of 
the WWTF effluent at the frequency required by the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) Permit. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  submit a corrective action 
plan identifying the actions that have been implemented, or that will be 
implemented to ensure compliance with NPDES permit limits and ensure that the 



 
 

WWTF effluent is monitored as required by the NPDES permit and that effluent 
sample results are accurately reported on the DMRs; and, pay a civil penalty in 
the amount of nineteen thousand, seven hundred thirty dollars ($19,730.00), in 
four equal payments.  

 
  

37) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 15-048-W  
Order Date: December 30, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Town of Fairfax 
Facility: Town of Fairfax Pump Station No. 4 
Location: 897 Bay Shore Drive 
 Fairfax, SC 29827 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 8 
 Fairfax, SC 29827 
County: Allendale  
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: SSS000604 
Violations Cited: Pollution Control Act, S.C Code Ann 
§ 48-1-90(a) (Supp. 2014), Water Pollution Control Permits, 3 S.C. Code 
Ann. Regs. 61-9.610.3(1)(a), 610.3 (1)(b), and, 610.3 (1)(c) (2011).  
 
Summary:  The Town of Fairfax (Individual/Entity) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a Satellite Sewer System 
(SSS), located in Allendale County, South Carolina. On March 25, 2015, and 
March 26, 2015, the Department conducted inspections of Pump Station No. 4 in 
response to a complaint. The Individual/Entity has violated the Pollution Control 
Act and Water Pollution Control Permits Regulation as follows:  discharged 
untreated wastewater into the environment in a manner other than in compliance 
with a permit issued by the Department; failed to properly operate in good 
working order at all times all parts of its sewer system; failed to provide adequate 
capacity to convey base flows and peak flows for all parts of its sewer system; 
and, failed to take all reasonable steps to stop and mitigate the impact of releases 
of wastewater to the environment.  

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: submit a corrective action 

plan and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; orally report to 
the Department all wastewater spills of any volume from its SSS within twenty-
four (24) hours; submit copies of public notices issued by the Individual/Entity for 
all significant spills from its SSS; begin a comprehensive review of its SSS 
operations by conducting a capacity, management, operations and maintenance 
(CMOM) audit; submit a report of findings from the CMOM audit; finalize a 
comprehensive management plan that covers operations, maintenance, and 
management of the SSS; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight thousand, 
four hundred dollars ($8,400.00), in four equal payments. 

 
 



 
 

38) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-001-W  
 Order Date:    January 14, 2016 
 Individual/Entity:   Rex Corporation   
 Facility:    Lofts of Clemson 
 Location:    Lindsay Road  

Clemson, SC 
 Mailing Address:   2600 Powell Drive 
      Chambersburg, PA 17201 
 County:    Pickens 
 Previous Orders:   None 
 Permit/ID Number:   SCR10L209  
 Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann.§ 48-1-90(a), § 48-1-

110(a)(1) and (d) (Supp. 2014), and 24 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
9.122.26(a)(1) and R. 122.41 (e) (2011) 

  
Summary: Rex Corporation (Individual/Entity) is responsible for land-

disturbing activities on property (Parcel #4054-09-15-2573) located on the south 
side of Lindsay Road, north of Cochran Road (Site) in Pickens County, South 
Carolina. Stormwater Compliance Inspection Reports were sent to the 
Individual/Entity on May 16, 2014, October 21, 2014, and November 17, 2014, 
notifying deficiencies and unsatisfactory conditions at the Site. The 
Individual/Entity has violated the Pollution Control Act and Water Pollution 
Control Permits Regulation as follows:  failed to install and maintain the 
necessary best management practices (BMPs) as specified in its Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and allowed the discharge of sediment into 
the environment, including waters of the state, in a manner other than in 
compliance with a permit issued by the Department.  
   

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of sixteen thousand dollars ($16,000.00). The violations were corrected 
prior to the issuance of the Order.  The penalty has been paid and the order is 
closed.  

 
 

39) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-002-W 
Order Date:    January 28, 2016 
Individual/Entity: Greenwood Commissioners of 

Public Works (CPW)     
Facility:    W.R. Wise Water Treatment Plant 
Location:    202 Water Plant Road 

       Greenwood, SC 29649  
Mailing Address:   P.O.  Box 549 

      Greenwood, SC 29648 
County:    Greenwood 
Previous Orders:   None  
Permit/ID Number:   SCG646008 



 
 

Violations Cited:   Pollution Control Act, S.C Code Ann 
§ 48-1-110(d) (Supp. 2014); and Water Pollution Control Permits, 3 S.C. 
Code Ann Regs. 61-9.122.41(a) and (d) (2011). 

 
Summary:  Greenwood CPW (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible 

for the proper operation and maintenance of a water treatment plant in Greenwood 
County, South Carolina. On March 17, 2014, and January 22, 2015, Notices of 
Violation were issued as a result of discharge monitoring reports submitted by the 
Individual/Entity. The Individual/Entity has violated the Pollution Control Act 
and Water Pollution Control Permits Regulation as follows: failed to comply with 
effluent discharge limits of its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
General Permit for acute whole effluent toxicity.    

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  submit a corrective action 

plan and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of two thousand, three hundred eighty dollars ($2,380.00).  

 
 

BUREAU OF AIR QUALITY 
 
 

40) Order Type and Number:  Administrative Order 15-051-A 
Order Date:    December 3, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Trey Smith d.b.a. Smith’s 

Construction and Mobile Flooring 
Services 

Facility:    Petan Apts. of St. Andrews 
Location:    800 Beatty Drive 

      Columbia SC 29210 
Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 716 

       Orangeburg SC 29116 
County:    Richland 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   N/A 
Violations Cited:   U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (“EPA”) Regulations at 40 CFR 61, National Emission Standards 
for Hazardous Air Pollutants, Subpart M, National Emission Standard for 
Asbestos, and 7 South Carolina Code Ann. Regs. 61-86.1, Standards of 
Performance for Asbestos Projects  

 
Summary: Trey Smith d.b.a. Smith’s Construction and Mobile Flooring 

Services (Individual/Entity) was contracted to clean out apartment buildings at 
Petan Apartments of St. Andrews (Site) after they were damaged by fire.  On 
July 24, 2014, a Department inspector conducted an investigation at the Site and 
observed asbestos-contaminated materials being improperly removed. On August 
25, 2015, September 10, 2015, and September 15, 2015, the Department 



 
 

attempted to issue a proposed consent order to the Individual/Entity.  Following 
appropriate efforts to resolve this matter in accordance with the Department’s 
Uniform Enforcement Policy, the Department issued an Administrative Order. 
The Individual/Entity has violated U.S. EPA National Emission Standard for 
Asbestos and South Carolina Standards of Performance for Asbestos Projects as 
follows: failed to comply with work practice requirements for a NESHAP-sized 
project related to preparation, removal, clean-up, and disposal of asbestos 
containing materials; failed to ensure that visible emissions from the work area 
did not escape into the environment; and failed to obtain a Department-issued 
asbestos contractor’s license, project license, or ensure that all persons engaged 
in the project were licensed to do so. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: not engage in any asbestos 
abatement projects unless all required licenses from the Department have been 
obtained and pay a civil penalty in the amount of twelve thousand, five hundred 
dollars ($12,500.00). 
 

 
41) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-049-A 

Order Date:    December 3, 2015 
Individual/Entity:   Ruiz Food Products, Inc. 
Facility:    Ruiz Food Products, Inc. 
Location:    2557 Florence Harllee Blvd. 
     Florence SC 29506 

 Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 37 
      Danuba CA 93618 
 County:    Florence 

Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   1040-0138-CA 
Violations Cited:   U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency Regulations at 40 CFR 68, and 5 South Carolina Code Ann. Regs. 
61-62.68, Chemical Accident Prevention Provisions (collectively “112(r) 
Regulations”) 
 
Summary:  Ruiz Food Products, Inc., (Individual/Entity) is a 

manufacturing facility that maintains greater than 10,000 pounds of anhydrous 
ammonia. On October 28, 2014, the Department conducted an inspection at the 
facility. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Regulations, 
Chemical Accident Prevention Provisions, as follows: failed to assign a qualified 
person to have overall responsibility for the Risk Management Program; failed to 
document all of the required information in its worst-case and alternative release 
scenarios; failed to document the safe upper and lower limits, with the 
consequences of deviation from those limits; failed to address findings and 
recommendations from the process hazard analysis; failed to provide 
documentation of all required employee and contractor training; failed to address 
in the operating procedures the control measures to be taken if physical contact or 



 
 

airborne exposure occurs; failed to update the written procedures that maintain the 
on-going integrity of the process equipment; and failed to provide records of 
inspections and tests on the process equipment. 

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: immediately implement and 

henceforth maintain its Risk Management Program in accordance with the 
regulations and pay a civil penalty in the amount of fifteen thousand dollars 
($15,000.00). 

 
 
42) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-052-A 

Order Date:    December 8, 2015 
Individual/Entity:   DesleeClama North America, Inc. 
Facility:    DesleeClama North America, Inc. 
Location:    1880 Campton Road  

Inman, SC 29349 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Spartanburg 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   2060-0509 
Violations Cited:   5 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, 
Section II, Permit Requirements and 5 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.5, 
Section IX.B. 

 
Summary:  DesleeClama North America, Inc. (Individual/Entity) 

manufactures mattress fabrics and coverings.  On January 18, 2015, the 
Department conducted an inspection in response to a complaint of smoke 
emissions and a Notice of Alleged Violation was issued on April 15, 2015.  On 
September 14, 2015, the Department conducted an inspection in response to a 
complaint of smoke emissions.  The Individual/Entity has violated South Carolina 
Air Pollution Control Regulations as follows: failed to limit opacity from a tenter 
frame to 20% during inspections conducted on January 28, 2015, and September 
14, 2015, and failed to maintain onsite emissions calculations and any other 
information necessary to document qualification for an exemption from the 
requirements to obtain a construction permit and provide such records to the 
Department upon request. 

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: henceforth limit opacity from 

the tenter frame to 20%; henceforth maintain onsite emissions calculations and 
any other information necessary to document qualification for an exemption from 
the requirements to obtain a construction permit and provide such records to the 
Department upon request; submit a construction permit application and written 
request for an operating permit for its mattress fabric manufacturing and 
application process, including a control device to limit visible emissions to an 
opacity not greater than 20%; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of six 
thousand, four hundred dollars ($6,400.00).     



 
 

 
 
43) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 15-053-A 

Order Date:    December 18, 2015 
Individual/Entity: Johnson Controls Battery Group, 

Inc. 
Facility:    Florence Recycling Center 
Location:    1800 Paper Mill Road 

Florence, S.C. 29501 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Florence 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   1040-0129-CA 
Violations Cited:   U.S. EPA 40 CFR Part 63, National 
Emission Standards For Hazardous Air Pollutants From Secondary Lead 
Smelting, Subpart X, 5 S. C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.63, Subpart X, 
National Emission Standards For Hazardous Air Pollutants From 
Secondary Lead Smelting, U.S. EPA 40 CFR Part 63 and 5 South Carolina 
Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.63 (Supp. 2013), National Emission Standards for 
Hazardous Air Pollutants for Affected Source Categories, Subpart A, 
General Provisions, U.S. EPA 40 CFR 60, Subpart A, 5 S.C. Code Ann. 
Regs. 61-62.60, Subpart A, New Source Performance Standards and 5 
S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, Section II, Permit Requirements 

 
Summary: Johnson Controls Battery Group, Inc. (Individual/Entity) 

operates a lead-acid battery recycling facility in Florence South Carolina.  On 
February 5, 2010, the Department issued Synthetic Minor Air Quality 
Construction Permit 1040-0129-CA to the Individual/Entity.  On March 18, 2014, 
through March 26, 2014, the Individual/Entity conducted source tests to 
demonstrate compliance with the Maximum Achievable Control Technology 
(MACT) requirements. On August 12, 2014, the Department began conducting 
more frequent inspections and on August 18, 2014, the Department received the 
final test results and additional information it requested regarding the tests and 
determined compliance as not demonstrated with the performance testing 
requirements.  The Individual/Entity has violated U.S. EPA Regulations, South 
Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations and Synthetic Minor Construction 
Permit 1040-0129-CA as follows:  failed to provide required records of 
continuous monitoring system performance evaluations; failed to operate 
according to the Standard Operating Procedures Manual for the control of fugitive 
dust and inspection of control devices; failed to provide adequate information 
regarding monitoring devices in its Notice of Compliance Status and periodic 
reports; failed to report total duration of excess emissions and monitor downtime 
as a percent of total operating time; failed to demonstrate the required negative 
pressure for total enclosure of buildings in which lead dust is generated; failed to 
describe corrective actions in periodic reports when pressure differential readings 
were outside of established ranges; failed to maintain established pressure 



 
 

differential on control devices; failed to adequately maintain and operate 
continuous emissions monitoring systems for carbon monoxide and nitrogen 
oxide emissions; failed to maintain combustion zone and afterburner temperatures 
during initial source testing; failed to comply with the limit on the amount of 
sodium nitrate used in the Refinery Process; and failed to repair breaches or other 
possible routes for emissions of lead dust to the atmosphere. 

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  submit a Total Enclosure 

Negative Pressure Assessment developed by a third party to correct deficiencies 
in maintaining the required total enclosure negative pressure; henceforth maintain 
the required negative pressure on all applicable total enclosures; submit a 
Continuous Emission Monitoring System Assessment developed by a third party; 
within 30 days of the final assessment or completion of necessary modifications, 
henceforth achieve no less than 95% monitor up time for all continuous emissions 
monitoring systems; henceforth maintain required combustion zone and 
afterburner temperatures; henceforth provide records of all required performance 
evaluations; henceforth document cause and corrective actions taken for 
parameter readings outside established ranges; submit to the Department an 
Environmental Management System developed by a third party that is consistent 
with ISO 14001 standards; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of two hundred 
fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00). 
 
 
44) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-001-A 

Order Date:    January 8, 2016 
Individual/Entity:   Broad River Materials, Inc.  
Facility:    Broad River Materials, Inc. 
Location:    209 Armory Rd. 

Union, SC 29379 
Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 683  

York, S.C. 29745 
County:    Union 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   9900-0125 
Violations Cited:   5 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, 
Section II, Permit Requirements 

 
Summary: Broad River Materials, Inc. (Individual/Entity) operates a sand 

drying facility.  The Department issued Conditional Major Operating Permit 
9900-0125 to the Individual/Entity, effective October 1, 2012.  On April 27, 2015, 
the Department conducted a comprehensive inspection and a Notice of Alleged 
Violation and Notice of Enforcement Conference was issued on August 10, 2015.  
The Individual/Entity violated South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations 
as follows: failed to conduct a source test to confirm particulate matter (PM) 
emissions from the sand dryer baghouse; failed to establish an operational range 
for the pressure drop of the baghouse, and maintain records of pressure drop 



 
 

readings; failed to operate and properly maintain the pressure drop gauge; failed 
to perform and maintain records of weekly operation and maintenance checks; 
failed to maintain fuel oil supplier certifications; failed to calculate PM emissions 
and submit semiannual emissions reports; failed to develop a facility-wide 
fugitive dust control plan; failed to develop written guidelines for water truck 
operators; failed to record weekly inspections of all water trucks including 
corrective actions and maintenance activities; and, failed to develop written 
guidelines for plant operators on how to address opacity problems. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: except as otherwise required, 
conduct source tests in accordance with the Order, not operate the sand dryer and 
associated permitted equipment until such time as the facility achieves 
compliance with the requirements of the Order; henceforth comply with all 
testing, operational, maintenance, monitoring, record keeping and reporting 
conditions of the Conditional Major Operating Permit; replace, calibrate, or 
otherwise repair the pressure drop gauge on the sand dryer baghouse and submit 
documentation demonstrating that the pressure drop gauge is operational and an 
operational range has been established; submit semiannual emissions reports and 
fuel oil supplier certifications for the reporting periods of October 1, 2014 through 
March 31, 2015, and April 1, 2015 through September 30, 2015; submit a facility-
wide fugitive dust control plan; submit written guidelines for water truck 
operators; submit written guidelines for plant operators on how to address opacity 
problems; conduct a Department-approved source performance test to confirm 
PM emissions from the sand dryer baghouse; pay a civil penalty in the amount of 
eight thousand five hundred dollars ($8,500.00); and, pay a suspended penalty in 
the amount eight thousand five hundred dollars ($8,500.00) should any 
requirement of the Order not be met.       
 
 
45) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-002-A 

Order Date:    January 4, 2016 
Individual/Entity: Boyer Commercial Construction, 

Inc. 
Facility:    Former Books-A-Million 
Location:    4840 Forest Drive, Unit 20   

Columbia SC 29206 
Mailing Address:   4500 Fort Jackson Blvd. 

      Columbia SC 29209 
County:    Richland 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit/ID Number:   U1412136 
Violations Cited:   U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (“EPA”) Regulations at 40 CFR 61, National Emission Standards 
for Hazardous Air Pollutants, Subpart M, National Emission Standard for 
Asbestos, and 7 South Carolina Code Ann. Regs. 61-86.1, Standards of 
Performance for Asbestos Projects  



 
 

 
Summary:  Boyer Commercial Construction, Inc. (Individual/Entity) is a 

construction contractor.  The Individual/Entity was hired to perform renovation 
activities at the former Books-A-Million in unit 20 of a shopping center located at 
4840 Forest Drive in Columbia, SC (Site).  On May 12, 2014, the Department 
conducted an investigation at the Site in response to a complaint.  The 
Individual/Entity violated Federal and State Standards of Performance for 
Asbestos Projects as follows: failed to ensure that its subcontractor notified the 
Department of a NESHAP-sized abatement project; failed to ensure its 
subcontractor obtained an asbestos project license from the Department prior to 
beginning an asbestos project; and, failed to ensure its subcontractor employed 
persons who engaged in an asbestos project were licensed to do so by the 
Department.  

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  comply with all Federal and 

State Standards of Performance for Asbestos Projects including: notifying the 
Department of a NESHAP-sized abatement project; obtaining an asbestos project 
license from the Department prior to beginning an asbestos project; ensuring that 
all persons engaged in an asbestos project are licensed to do so by the 
Department; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of three thousand dollars 
($3,000.00). 

 
 
46) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 16-003-A 

Order Date:    January 25, 2016 
Individual/Entity: M&M Landscaping and Tree 

Service, LLC 
Facility:    M&M Landscaping and Tree Service 
Location:    1884 Circle Bay Drive 

      Longs, SC 29568 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Horry 
Previous Orders:   14-028-A ($1,000.00) 
Permit/ID Number:   N/A 
Violations Cited:   5 South Carolina Code Ann. Regs.   

  61-62.2, Prohibition of Open Burning 
 

Summary: M&M Landscaping and Tree Service, LLC (Individual/Entity) 
is a land-clearing contractor located at 1884 Circle Bay Drive in Longs, South 
Carolina (Site).  On December 17, 2014, the Department conducted an 
investigation in response to a complaint of open burning at the Site and observed 
a burning pile of land clearing debris, that was located approximately 366 feet 
from a public roadway.  The Individual/Entity violated South Carolina Air 
Pollution Control Regulations as follows: burned land clearing debris less than 
1,000 feet from a public roadway. 
 



 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: cease all open burning at the 
Site and pay a civil penalty in the amount of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00). 
 

 
BUREAU OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 

 
 

47) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-03-069 
Order Date:    December 18, 2015    
Individual/Entity:   China Buffet 
Facility: China Buffet 
Location:    1293 38th Avenue North 
     Myrtle Beach, SC  29577 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Horry 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   26-206-11899 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  China Buffet (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in 

Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 
11, 2014, August 21, 2014, October 28, 2014, April 21, 2015, and November 12, 
2015. The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina Retail Food 
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding 
temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of one thousand, two hundred dollars ($1,200.00). 

 
 

48) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-04-005 
Order Date:    December 29, 2015    
Individual/Entity:   Kobe Japanese Steakhouse 
Facility: Kobe Japanese Steakhouse 
Location:    1121 Broad Street, Suite 13 
     Sumter, SC  29150 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Sumter 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   43-206-00885 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 



 
 

Summary:  Kobe Japanese Steakhouse (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant 
located in Sumter, South Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on 
June 30, 2015. The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina Retail Food 
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that live animals were not 
allowed on the premises of a retail food establishment. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount four hundred dollars ($400.00). 

 
 
49) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-03-069 

Order Date:    December 30, 2015    
Individual/Entity:   Waffle House #939 
Facility: Waffle House #939 
Location:    8600 Farrow Road 
     Columbia, SC  29201 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Richland 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   40-206-03351 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Waffle House #939 (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located 

in Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on May 29, 
2014, May 6, 2015, and November 5, 2015. The Individual/Entity violated the 
South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to 
maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety 
foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

50) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2014-206-03-116 
Order Date:    December 30, 2015    
Individual/Entity:   San Jose 
Facility: San Jose 
Location:    4525 Hard Scrabble Road 
     Columbia, SC  29229 
Mailing Address:   Same 



 
 

County:    Richland 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   40-206-06263 
Violations Cited:   4 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
Chapter II, Section B.1 (previous regulation) and S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 
61-25, 3-501.16(A) (1) and (2) (revised regulation) 
 
Summary:  San Jose (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in 

Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on September 
5, 2013, August 27, 2014, and September 3, 2014.  The Individual/Entity violated 
the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to 
maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety 
foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: maintain proper holding 
temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods; operate and maintain 
the facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; establish operational monitoring procedures for 
checking the temperatures of hot and cold time/temperature control for safety 
foods; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity complete a food 
protection manager certification program; pay a civil penalty in the amount of one 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00); and, pay a stipulated penalty in the amount of two 
hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) should the required food protection manager 
certification program not be completed. 

 
 

51) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2014-206-03-118 
Order Date:    December 30, 2015    
Individual/Entity:   Dunkin Donuts 
Facility: Dunkin Donuts 
Location:    549 Knox Abbott Drive  
     Cayce, SC  29033 
Mailing Address:   68 Main Street 
                                                            Suite 102 
                                                            Tuckahoe, NY10707 
County:    Lexington 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   32-206-06166 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25, 5-
202.14 
 
Summary:  Dunkin Donuts (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in 

Cayce, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 11, 
2014, and August 20, 2014.  The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina 
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: the plumbing system was not 
installed to preclude backflow. 



 
 

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 

facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of seven 
hundred fifty dollars ($750.00).  

 
 

52) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2014-206-06-062 
Order Date:    December 30, 2015    
Individual/Entity:   Pee Dee Grocery 
Facility: Pee Dee Grocery 
Location:    9150 Highway 701 South 
     Conway, SC  29527 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Horry 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   26-206-10614                                    
Violations Cited:   4 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
Chapter II, Section B.1 (previous regulation) and S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 
61-25, 3-501.16(A) (1) and (2) (revised regulation) 
 
Summary:  Pee Dee Grocery (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in 

Conway, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on May 30, 
2014, June 6, 2014, and September 26, 2014.  The Individual/Entity violated the 
South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to 
maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety 
foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: maintain proper holding 
temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods; operate and maintain 
the facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; establish operational monitoring procedures for 
checking the temperatures of hot and cold time/temperature control for safety 
foods; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity complete a food 
protection manager certification program; pay a civil penalty in the amount of one 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00); and, pay a stipulated penalty in the amount of two 
hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) should the required food protection manager 
certification program not be completed. 

 
 

53) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-06-015 
Order Date:    January 4, 2016

 Individual/Entity:     Avista Resort 
Facility:    Avista Resort 
Location:    300 North Ocean Boulevard 

      North Myrtle Beach, SC  29582 



 
 

Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Horry 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   26-206-09748 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Avista Resort (Individual/Entity) is a hotel with a restaurant 

located in North Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. The Department conducted 
inspections on September 24, 2014, March 11, 2015 and October 22, 2015. The 
Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment 
Regulation as follows:  failed to maintain proper chemical sanitizer levels in the 
dish machine. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of one thousand, two hundred dollars ($1,200.00). 
54) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-03-062 

Order Date:    January 4, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Nathan’s Restaurant 
Facility:    Nathan’s Restaurant 
Location:    1840 Hampton Street 

      Columbia, SC  29201 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Richland  
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   40-206-02816 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Nathan’s Restaurant (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located 

in Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on May 5, 
2014, and April 27, 2015. The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina 
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper 
holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

55) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-03-023 
Order Date:    January 4, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Lizard’s Thicket #08 



 
 

Facility:    Lizard’s Thicket #08 
Location:    3147 Forest Drive 

      Columbia, SC  29204 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County :    Richland 
Previous Orders:   2014-206-03-035 ($500.00) 
Permit Number:   40-206-03908  
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Lizard’s Thicket (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in 

Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on February 
6, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina Retail Food 
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding 
temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of six hundred dollars ($600.00). 

 
 
56) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-03-063 

Order Date:    January 6, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Broad River Mart 
Facility:    Broad River Mart 
Location:    4335 Broad River Road  

      Columbia, SC  29210 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Richland 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   40-206-07019 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Broad River Mart (Individual/Entity) is a convenience store 

located in Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on 
January 22, 2014, and January 13, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South 
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain 
proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 

facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 



 
 

 
57) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-03-054 

Order Date:    January 6, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Shoney’s 
Facility:    Shoney’s 
Location:    2208-B Airport Blvd. 

      West Columbia, SC  29170 
Mailing Address:   205 East Liberty Street 

                                                            Sumter, SC 29150 
County:    Lexington 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   32-206-05070                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Shoney’s (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in West 

Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on March 6, 
2014, and February 27, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina 
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper 
holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

58) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2014-206-03-067 
Order Date:    January 6, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Kwik Korner 
Facility:    Kwik Korner 
Location:    6134 Shakespeare Road 

      Columbia, SC  29223 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Richland 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   40-206-05283                                   
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Kwik Korner (Individual/Entity) is a convenience store located 

in Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on July 8, 
2014, and June 15, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina 
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper 
holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 



 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

59) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-03-039 
Order Date:    January 8, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Lizard’s Thicket #11 
Facility:    Lizard’s Thicket #11 
Location:    501 Knox Abbott Drive 

      Cayce, SC  29033 
Mailing Address:   1036 Market Street 

                                                             Columbia, SC 29201 
County:    Lexington 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   32-206-01039                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Lizard’s Thicket #11 (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located 

in Cayce, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on June 10, 
2014, and April 2, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina Retail 
Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding 
temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 
60) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-07-006 

Order Date:    January 8, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Big Billy’s Burger Joint 
Facility:    Big Billy’s Burger Joint 
Location:    5070 International Blvd. 

      North Charleston, SC  29418 
Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 2446 

                                                             Mt. Pleasant, SC 29465 
County:    Charleston 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   10-206-07998                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 



 
 

Summary:  Big Billy’s Burger Joint (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant 
located in North Charleston, South Carolina. The Department conducted 
inspections on December 3, 2014, and June 3, 2015.  The Individual/Entity 
violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: 
failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for 
safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 
61) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-03-044 

Order Date:    January 15, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Bi-Lo #5716 Deli/Bakery 
Facility:    Bi-Lo #5716 Deli/Bakery 
Location:    1401 East Main St. 

      Rock Hill, SC  29730 
Mailing Address:   5050 Edgewood Court 

                                                            Jacksonville, FL 32254 
County:    York 
Previous Orders:   2014-206-03-090 
Permit Number:   46-206-02059                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Bi-Lo #5716 Deli/Bakery (Individual/Entity) is a deli and 

bakery located in Rock Hill, South Carolina. The Department conducted 
inspections on April 28, 2015 and October 23, 2015.  The Individual/Entity 
violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: 
failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for 
safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 
62) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-06-029 

Order Date:    January 14, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Reserve Harbor Yacht Club 
Facility:    Reserve Harbor Yacht Club 
Location:    2039 Willbrook Boulevard 



 
 

      Pawley’s Island, SC 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Georgetown 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   22-206-05860                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Reserve Harbor Yacht Club (Individual/Entity) is a marina 

with a restaurant located in Pawley’s Island, South Carolina. The Department 
conducted inspections on May 19, 2015, and May 29, 2015.  The 
Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment 
Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper chemical sanitizer levels in the 
dish machine. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 
 
 
63) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-08-007 

Order Date:    January 21, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Ocean Blue 
Facility:    Ocean Blue 
Location:    1 Hotel Circle 

      Hilton Head, SC  29925 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Beaufort 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   07-206-07164                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Ocean Blue (Individual/Entity) is a hotel with a restaurant 

located in Pawley’s Island, South Carolina. The Department conducted 
inspections on May 4, 2015, and May 13, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated 
the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to 
maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety 
foods. 

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 

facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 



 
 

 
64) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-07-031 

Order Date:    January 21, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Hot Spot #1601 
Facility:    Hot Spot #1601 
Location:    2203 North Main Street 

      Summerville, SC  29483 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Berkeley 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   08-206-03526                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Hot Spot #1601 (Individual/Entity) is a convenience store 

located in Summerville, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections 
on May 13, 2014, and April 23, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South 
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain 
proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

65) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-07-034 
Order Date:    January 21, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Margaritas 
Facility:    Margaritas 
Location:    223 North Main Street 

      Summerville, SC  29483 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Berkeley 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   18-206-05824                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Margaritas (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in 

Summerville, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on March 
17, 2015, and March 26, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina 
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper 
holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 



 
 

including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 
66) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-211-03-002 

Order Date:    January 21, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Tortilleria Primavera 
Facility:    Tortilleria Primavera 
Location:    1818 Augusta Road 

      West Columbia, SC  29169 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Lexington 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   32-211-05786                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Tortilleria Primavera (Individual/Entity) is a retail market 

located in West Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted 
inspections on April 22, 2014, and April 14, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated 
the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to 
maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety 
foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

67) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-06-024 
Order Date:    January 21, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Damon’s Ocean Front 
Facility:    Damon’s Ocean Front 
Location:    2985 South Ocean Boulevard 

      Myrtle Beach, SC  29577 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Horry 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   26-206-07991                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Damon’s Ocean Front (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant 

located in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections 
on January 15, 2015, and May 6, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South 



 
 

Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain 
proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

68) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2014-206-06-061 
Order Date:    January 22, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Davinci Pizza 
Facility:    Davinci Pizza 
Location:    1715 North Kings Highway 

      Myrtle Beach, SC  29418 
Mailing Address:   2605 Tip Top Court 

                                                         Myrtle Beach, SC 29577 
County:    Horry 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   26-206-06-061                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Davinci Pizza (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in 

Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 
14, 2014, August 21, 2014, September 11, 2014, and July 20, 2015.  The 
Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment 
Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of 
time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of one thousand, six hundred dollars ($1,600.00). 

 
 

69) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-07-048 
Order Date:    January 22, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Piggly Wiggly #011 Deli 
Facility:    Piggly Wiggly #011 Deli 
Location:    404 North Cedar Street 

      Summerville, SC  29483 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Berkeley 
Previous Orders:   None 



 
 

Permit Number:   18-206-00003                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Piggly Wiggly #011 Deli (Individual/Entity) is a deli and 

bakery located in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. The Department conducted 
inspections on June 16, 2014, and June 9, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated 
the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to 
maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety 
foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 
70) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-07-011 

Order Date:    January 25, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Foodies Café and Catering, LLC 
Facility:    Foodies Café and Catering, LLC 
Location:    1729 Sam Rittenberg Blvd. 

      Charleston, SC  29407 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Charleston 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   10-206-08840                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Foodies Café and Catering, LLC (Individual/Entity) is a 

restaurant located in Charleston, South Carolina. The Department conducted 
inspections on January 8, 2015, and June 30, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated 
the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to 
maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety 
foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

71) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-07-035 
Order Date:    January 25, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Melvin’s Southern BBQ 



 
 

Facility:    Melvin’s Southern BBQ 
Location:    538 Folly Road 

      Charleston, SC  29412 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Charleston 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   10-206-00492                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Melvin’s Southern BBQ (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant 

located in Charleston, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on 
February 13, 2015, and February 23, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the 
South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to 
maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety 
foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

72) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-03-031 
Order Date:    January 25, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     KJ’s Market Deli/Bakery 
Facility:    KJ’s Market Deli/Bakery 
Location:    543 Saint Andrews Road 

      Charleston, SC  29407 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Charleston 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   10-206-08840                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  KJ’s Market Deli/Bakery (Individual/Entity) is a deli and 

bakery located in Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted 
inspections on March 10, 2014, and March 2, 2015.  The Individual/Entity 
violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: 
failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for 
safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 



 
 

complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 
73) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-08-008 

Order Date:    January 25, 2016
 Individual/Entity:     Cottage Café & Bakery 

Facility:    Cottage Café & Bakery 
Location:    38 Calhoun Street 

      Bluffton, SC  29910 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Beaufort 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   07-206-09214                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Cottage Café & Bakery (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant 

located in Bluffton, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on 
November 10, 2014, and May 26, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South 
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain 
proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

74) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-05-003 
Order Date:    January 25, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Greg’s Gas Plus 
Facility:    Greg’s Gas Plus 
Location:    6043 Jefferson Davis Highway 

      North Augusta, SC  29841 
Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 6220 

                                                             North Augusta, SC 29841 
County:    Aiken 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   02-206-01111                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Greg’s Gas Plus (Individual/Entity) is a convenience store 

located in North Augusta, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections 
on May 19, 2015, and May 26, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South 



 
 

Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain 
proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

75) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-07-012 
Order Date:    January 25, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Panda Palace 
Facility:    Panda Palace 
Location:    1119 Wappoo Road-Unit C 

      Charleston, SC  29407 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Charleston 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   10-206-08330                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Panda Palace (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in 

Charleston, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on January 
29, 2015, and May 21, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina 
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper 
holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

76) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-03-047 
Order Date:    January 25, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Happy Garden 
Facility:    Happy Garden 
Location:    991 North Anderson Road 

      Rock Hill, SC  29730 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    York 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   46-206-02698                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 



 
 

 
Summary:  Happy Garden (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in 

North Augusta, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on April 
23, 2015, and June 10, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina 
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper 
holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 

 
 

77) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-03-059 
Order Date:    January 28, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Liberty at the Lake 
Facility:    Liberty at the Lake 
Location:    1602 Marina Road 

      Irmo, SC  29063 
Mailing Address:   1177 Southgate Drive 

                                                          Charleston SC 29407 
County:    Richland 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   40-206-07068                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Liberty at the Lake (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located 

in Irmo, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on April 14, 
2014, April 9, 2015, and September 9, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the 
South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to 
maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety 
foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of one thousand, two hundred dollars ($1,200.00). 

 
 

78) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 2015-206-07-024 
Order Date:    January 29, 2016 
Individual/Entity:     Checkers #3312 
Facility:    Checkers #3312 
Location:    601 North Main Street 



 
 

      Summerville, SC  29483 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County:    Dorchester 
Previous Orders:   None 
Permit Number:   18-206-07686                                    
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25 
 
Summary:  Checkers #3312 (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located 

Summerville. The Department conducted inspections on April 14, 2014, April 9, 
2015, and September 9, 2015.  The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina 
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper 
holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods. 
 

Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the 
facility in accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, 
including S.C. Regs. 61-25; have one (1) representative from the Individual/Entity 
complete a food protection manager certification program; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of one thousand, two hundred dollars ($1,200.00). 

 
 

DIVISION OF OCEAN AND COASTAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
 
 

79) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 15C-005F 
Order Date: January 4, 2016 
Individual/Entity: Jeffrey A. Romfo and Erika 

Romfo 
Location: 1029 Rivershore Road 
 Charleston, SC  
Mailing Address: 1029 Rivershore Road 
 Charleston, SC 29492 
County: Berkeley 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: OCRM-01-301-R 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. §48-39-130(A) and 
23A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 30-2(B); 23A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 30-
12(A)(2)(e)(i) 

  
Summary:   Jeffrey A. Romfo and Erika Romfo (Individuals/Entities) are 

the owners of certain property abutting the tidelands critical area.  An inspection 
at the Site was conducted on September 18, 2014, and a Notice of Violation and 
Admission Letter was issued on June 16, 2015.  The Individuals/Entities have 
violated the Coastal Zone Management Act and Critical Area Permitting 
Regulations as follows:  installed two floating boat storage structures and a 2’ x 6’ 
fish cleaning station/sink in the tidelands critical area without a Department 
permit.   



 
 

 
Action:  The Individuals/Entities are required to:  submit an 

administratively complete after-the-fact permit request for the floating boat 
storage structure and fish cleaning station/sink and pay a civil penalty of seven 
hundred fifty-one dollars ($751.00). 

 
 

80) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 13C-009WF 
Order Date: January 11, 2016 
Individual/Entity: Walter J. Winkowski 
Location: 1025 Rivershore Road 
 Charleston, SC 
Mailing Address: 1025 Rivershore Road 
 Charleston, SC 29492 
County: Berkeley 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: OCRM-12-116-D 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. §48-39-130(A) and 
23A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 30-2(B). 

  
Summary:  Walter J. Winkowski (Individual/Entity) is the owner of 

certain property abutting the tidelands critical area.  An inspection at the Site was 
conducted on September 17, 2013, and a Notice of Violation and Admission 
Letter was issued on November 25, 2013.  The Individual/Entity has violated the 
Coastal Zone Management Act and Critical Area Permitting Regulations as 
follows: added a storage locker on a platform off of the walkway without 
authorization from the Department.   

 
Action:  The Individual/Entity is required to:  submit an administratively 

complete after-the-fact permit request for the remaining dock structure and pay a 
civil penalty of five hundred dollars ($500.00). 

 
 

 
 

 
                                                 
* Unless otherwise specified, “Previous Orders” as listed in this report include orders issued by 
Environmental Affairs Programs within the last five (5) years. 
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